
 

 

 

 
Meeting 
 

Winchester Town Forum 
 

Date and Time 
 

Monday, 11th March, 2024 at 6.30 pm. 

Venue 
 

Walton Suite, Winchester Guildhall and streamed live on 
YouTube at www.youtube.com/winchestercc 

  
Note: This meeting is being held in person at the location specified above.  
 Members of the public should note that a live video feed of the meeting will be 
available from the council’s YouTube channel (www.youtube.com/winchestercc)  
during the meeting. 
  
A limited number of seats will be made available at the above named location 
however attendance must be notified to the council at least 3 working days before 
the meeting. Please note that priority will be given to those wishing to attend and 
address the meeting over those wishing to attend and observe. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

1.   Apologies  
 To record the names of apologies given 

 

2.   Disclosures of Interests  
 To receive any disclosure of interests from Members and Officers in matters 

to be discussed. 
 
Note: Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare disclosable 
pecuniary interests, personal and/or prejudicial interests in accordance with 
legislation and the Council’s Code of Conduct. 
  
If you require advice, please contact the appropriate Democratic Services 
Officer, prior to the meeting. 
 

3.   Chairperson's Announcements  
 

4.   Minutes of the previous meeting held on 25 January 2024 (Pages 5 - 10) 
 That the minutes of the meeting be signed as a correct record. 

 
 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.youtube.com/winchestercc


5.   Public Participation  
 To receive and note the questions asked and statements made from 

members of the public on issues relating to the responsibility of this Forum. 
 
Members of the public and visiting councillors may speak at the Forum, 
provided they have registered to speak three working days in advance. 
Please contact Democratic Services by 5pm on Tuesday, 5 March 2024 via 
democracy@winchester.gov.uk or (01962) 848 264 to register to speak and 
for further details. 
 

6.   Update from Stagecoach (verbal update)  
 

7.   Winchester Town Vision Update (WTF329) (Pages 11 - 28) 
 

8.   Liveable Neighbourhoods (verbal update)  
 

9.   Informal Group - verbal update  
 Optional: The Chairs of any of the informal groups may briefly update the 

Forum on any recent developments from their group. 
 

10.   Work Programme (Pages 29 - 30) 
 To note the work programme for March 2024  

 
Laura Taylor 

Chief Executive 
 
All of the Council’s publicly available agendas, reports and minutes are available 
to view and download from the Council’s Website and are also open to 
inspection at the offices of the council.  As part of our drive to minimise our use 
of paper we do not provide paper copies of the full agenda pack at meetings. 
We do however, provide a number of copies of the agenda front sheet at the 
meeting which contains the QR Code opposite. Scanning this code enables 
members of the public to easily access all of the meeting papers on their own 
electronic device. Please hold your device’s camera or QR code App over the 
QR Code so that it's clearly visible within your screen and you will be redirected 
to the agenda pack  

 
 

  
 
 
1 March 2024 
 
Agenda Contact: Claire Buchanan, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01962 848 438   Email: cbuchanan@winchester.gov.uk 
 
*With the exception of exempt items, Agenda, reports and previous minutes are available on the 
Council’s Website  

 
 
 
 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
 
Chairperson: Reach (Liberal 
Democrats) 

Vice-Chairperson: Batho (Liberal 
Democrats) 

 
Liberal Democrats  
Becker 
Edwards 
Eve 
Learney 
Morris 
Prest 
Scott 
Tippett-Cooper 
Thompson 
Tod 
Westwood 
Wise 
 

  
 

 
Quorum = 5 members 
 
The two County Council Members representing the Winchester Town area are 
invited as observers. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
A public question and comment session is available at 6.30pm for a 15 minute 
period.  There are a few limitations on the questions you can ask.  These mainly 
relate to current applications (including grants), personal cases and confidential 
matters.   
 
To reserve your place to speak, you are asked to register with Democratic 
Services three clear working days prior to the meeting –Please contact 
Democratic Services via democracy@winchester.gov.uk or (01962) 848 264 to 
register to speak and for further details. 
 
VOTING 
 

• apart from the Chairperson, every Member has one vote when a matter before 
the meeting requires a decision. 
 

• in the event of an equality of votes, the Chairperson may exercise a casting 
vote and that vote may be exercised in any way seen fit. 

 

• a Member may abstain from voting, or vote differently from how they may have 
indicated during the debate, without further explanation. 

 



The way each Member voted will not be recorded in the minutes, unless a motion to 
have a Recorded Vote has been passed. 
 
 
 
Disabled Access 
 
Disabled access is normally available, but please phone Democratic Services on 
01962 848 264 or email democracy@winchester.gov.uk three clear working days 
prior to the meeting to ensure that the necessary arrangements are in place. 
 
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
 
This meeting will be recorded and broadcast live from the Council’s YouTube 
channel. The meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and 
members of the public – please see the Access to Information Procedure Rules 
within the Council's Constitution for further information, which is available to view on 
the Council’s website. Please note that the video recording is subtitled, but you may 
have to enable your device to see them (advice on how to do this is on the meeting 
page). 
 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4


 
 

 
 

WINCHESTER TOWN FORUM 
 

Thursday, 25 January 2024 
Attendance: 

 
Councillors 

 
Reach (Chairperson) 

 
 
Batho 
Becker (from item 6) 
Edwards 
Eve 
Learney 
Morris 

 
Prest 
Scott 
Thompson  
Tod 
Tippett-Cooper (from item 6) 
Wise 
Westwood 

  
 
Full video recording 

 
 
 

 
1.    APOLOGIES  

 
No apologies of absence were received for the meeting. 
 

2.    DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS  
 
Councillor Tod declared a personal (but non prejudicial) interest concerning 
agenda items that may be related to his role as a County Councillor.  
 

3.    CHAIRPERSON'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Hiscock, Hampshire County Council, to 
the meeting.  
 
The Chairperson announced that Christmas 2023 in Winchester had been a 
huge success. Preparations and plans for Christmas 2024 were now being 
worked up, together with lessons learned from previous years to make further 
improvements to the Christmas Markets going forward. 
 

4.    MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 8 November 2023 
be approved and adopted. 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=159&MId=4293&Ver=4


 
 

 
 

 
5.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 
Ian Tait spoke during item 6 (Update from Sarah Davis, BID) and a summary of 
his comments are set out under the relevant minute below.  
 

6.    UPDATE FROM SARAH DAVIS, BID MANAGER REGARDING BINS AND 
REFUSE IN WINCHESTER CITY CENTRE (VERBAL UPDATE)  
 
Ian Tait addressed the committee on this item. 
 
In summary, Ian Tait made reference to the following points: 
  

• The history of a high volume of trade waste bins stored in Hammonds 
Passage – it took until 2018 with the development of the Trade Waste Action 
Plan to get the bins removed, similarly in Parchment Street. 

• Recently problems have been recurring in The Square from businesses. 

• Planning process has been used to ensure conditions were in place for the 
storage of rubbish internally, but this is not always followed or enforced.  

• A focus with officers and the BID was required to ensure the businesses 
follow a protocol for the storage of bins indefinitely. 
 

The Chairperson welcomed Sarah Davis, BID Manager to the meeting who 
provided an update regarding bins, refuse and waste from businesses in the 
town centre and highlighted concerns regarding storage issues and the volume 
of bins kept with 112 food outlets in the city centre and most using more than 
one bin.  
 
The impending bin store facility at Cossack Lane was welcomed by BID and it 
was emphasised that there was a need to raise awareness to ensure bins were 
stored in an appropriate manner going forward to keep the town centre clean, 
free of bins and clutter and the associated repercussions of this. 
 
The committee proceeded to ask questions and comment on the following 
matters which were responded to by Sarah Davis and the Head of Programme: 
Place. 
 
(a) It was reported that ward councillors in town wards received regular reports 

as a result of the lack of bin storage from residents and businesses and 
questioned what appetite there was among businesses in the town centre for 
a fundamental change to the way in which waste was collected.  

(b) A complex situation that required input from various authorities with their 
associated powers i.e highway obstruction, environmental health issues, 
change of use requiring planning permissions etc – what could BID do to 
encourage businesses to better manage the disposal of waste and reduce 
food waste going forward. Areas to explore included improved education on 
‘recycle, re-purpose, re-use and reduce’, the streamlining of suppliers and 
business sign up to apps such as ‘Too Good To Go’ to reduce end of day 
food waste. 

(c) Clear guidance for all businesses on how and when bins should be put out 
for collection and stored in the meantime and of the potential of resulting 

Page 6



 
 

 
 

penalties and enforcement action that could be taken against persistent 
offenders that do not follow the process.  

(d) The need to reduce the number of bins used by each business going forward 
– a possible charging scheme for commercial bin store and maintenance use 
to ensure bins are stored appropriately by businesses at a defined number in 
order to prevent penalties for inappropriate storage being applied. 

(e) Changes to bin storage at God Begot House were still being investigated 
following archaeological works to establish if this was feasible and an 
additional bin store had been constructed at Cossack Lane. 

(f) Detailed discussions with individual businesses using an increased number 
of bins. 

(g) Streetscene Officer post currently vacant and in the process of recruitment 
will work with businesses on this matter going forward.  

(h) Early campaigning and raising awareness for the preparation of businesses 
with the introduction of new food waste and recycling requirements coming 
into force for businesses in 2025. 

(i) Shared responsibility for the disposal of refuse. 
(j) Methods of communication.  
(k) One-stop shop for contracts with negotiation.  
 
At the conclusion of debate, the forum thanked Sarah Davis for attending the 
meeting to provide an informative update and welcomed the collaborative work 
that would take place progress this matter going forward. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
  That the update be received, and the comments raised by the 
 committee, as summarised above, be noted. 
 

7.    WINCHESTER TOWN ACCOUNT BUDGET FOR 2024/25 (TO BE 
RECOMMENDED TO CABINET) (WTF328)  

  
Councillor Learney introduced the report setting out the Winchester Town 
Account which was an expense set within the council budget paying for 
expenditure in the unparished area of the district; the five town wards, with the 
exception of Harestock which sits within Littleton and Harestock Parish Council. 
 
It was reported that three quarters of this expenditure was used to fund 
recreation grounds, play areas and open spaces and was also used for public 
transport provision, community safety, public conveniences, grants to community 
organisations. With the majority of spend connected to inflation linked contracts, 
costs have increased considerably in the last few years. 
 
In order to balance the budget, reviews have been carried out to play area 
refurbishment by lowering capital spend and increasing reactive maintenance 
and granted reductions have been agreed for future years. In addition, during 
2024/25 a review of cemeteries and open space management would also take 
place for net efficiencies and savings.  
 
It was emphasised that the town had small sources of income including 
allotments, pitch pavilion and court rental, cemeteries charges and for capital 

Page 7



 
 

 
 

expenditure, the local portion of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The Forum 
continued to support the provision of great recreation and public facilities which 
could be demonstrated by the new KGV pavilion, the skate park and the work 
carried out in the town’s parks and playgrounds as well as the aspirations 
strongly supported by the public in the River Park Park Plan and the Vision for 
Winchester. In addition, it wished to continue the greener faster agenda, and the 
Pride in Place work in town ward areas, therefore spending plans and 
unexpected expenditure needed to be carefully considered to achieve this.  
 
It was recognised that for financial resilience, it was prudent to increase the level 
of reserves which would result in a precept increase greater than the 3% 
indicated in projections set out in the report. When looking at the level of council 
tax precept in the town area for 2024/25, it was therefore proposed that Cabinet 
be asked to endorse the maximum increase allowed under the combined town 
and district referendum limit for final approval by Council in February 2024.  
 
The forum asked questions and raised comments, particularly in relation to the 
inflation and financial pressure, the impact of the capping limits that constrained 
the town forum budget, CIL funding, the disparity in the forecast between 
cemeteries and grants, awareness of potential shortfalls as an impact of cuts to 
county council services and the Government’s funding announcement which 
were addressed by Cabinet Member and the Finance Manager (Strategic 
Finance) accordingly.  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the Town Forum; 
 

1. Agrees the draft budget for 2024/25 and the 
indicative projections for the strategy period, as 
shown in Appendix 1 of the report; 

 
2. Approves an increase in the target minimum town 

reserve balance from 10% to 15% of annual net 
service expenditure;  

 

3. Approves an increase of £5,841 to the baseline 
town revenue budget from 2024/25, in respect of 
increased reactive maintenance and annual life 
expectancy reports on play equipment; and 

 
4. Recommend to Cabinet that the Council Tax 

precept for the Town area be increased to the 
maximum commensurate with the council tax 
referendum limit for 2024/25, noting the 
requirements for the council to keep within overall 
referendum constraints.  

Page 8



 
 

 
 

 
 

8.    INFORMAL GROUP - VERBAL UPDATE  
 
The Forum received individual updates from the Chairpersons of various Town 
Informal Groups, where updates had not already been provided within the items 
considered above. Each summarised the work that had been carried out by the 
respective groups over the previous two-month period.   
 
Councillor Tippett-Cooper – Heritage Group 
Progress updates from the group included: 
  
(i) The Buttercross and Hyde Abbey Gateway – Restoration works were still 

scheduled to commence by Spring 2024.  The council had engaged an 
historic architect to prepare and submit plans to Historic England for both 
scheduled monuments which were due to be submitted within the next 
two weeks for their approval and the schedule of the key elements of work 
expected at both monuments were detailed. 

 
  RESOLVED: 
 

That the update received from the Town Informal Groups, 
be noted. 

 
 

9.    WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24  
 

The Chairperson reported that an update from the Friends of St Giles Hill Park 
regarding preliminary works was due to come forward to the forum at the first 
meeting of the new municipal year in June 2024.  
 
 

RESOLVED: 
                                                                                                                                                                                    

 That, subject to noting the inclusion of the item above to the work 
programme for the next municipal year 2024/25, the work programme for 
2023/24 be noted. 

 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and concluded at 7.30 pm 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



WTF329 
WINCHESTER TOWN FORUM 

 
 

REPORT TITLE: WINCHESTER VISION UPDATE 
 
11 MARCH 2024 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: Cllr Kathleen Becker, Cabinet Member for 
Community & Engagement     

Contact Officer:  Susan Robbins    Tel No: 01962 8484 461 Email 
srobbins@winchester.goiv.uk  

WARD(S):  ALL TOWN WARDS 
 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

The Town Forum adopted the Winchester Vision in January 2021 and have received 
two annual up-dates on activities across the council that have demonstrated delivery 
of the Vision. 

In the meantime much has been achieved and much has changed in the way the 
council works with residents and local communities.  The key focus of the Vision was 
always on the ‘how’ and not the ‘what’ and sought to encourage community 
empowerment and resilience. 

Therefore, this report reviews the extent to which the principles of increased 
community participation, a great voice in local decisions and community self-support 
have been adopted.  It also considers the actions proposed in the Vision handbooks 
and the routes to how these can and are being realised, whilst recognising this a 
long-term Vision.      

 

  

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Winchester Town Forum are asked to:  

1. Note the up-date on the Winchester Town Vision since its adoption in January 
2021.   

2. Support  
a. the introduction of revised Town Forum committee report template that 

includes the Town Vision outcomes as a section for report authors to 
consider.  

b. Revising the Town small and project grant criteria to include Town Vision 
outcomes. 

c. Renaming (some of) the Informal Groups to reflect the Vision outcomes.   

 
 
IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME  

1.1 The Winchester Town Vision identified how its implementation supports and 
positively contributes to Council Plan outcomes.  In summary this includes:  

1.2 Tackling the Climate Emergency and Creating a Greener District. Through 
Vision outcomes 2 – Ecology and 5 - Movement, projects support the priorities 
of “The natural and built environment needs to be protected, maintained, 
sustained and enhanced” and “people can move around the place easily and 
prefer to travel on foot, by bike and using public transport”.   

1.3 Homes for all. Through Vision outcome 4 – Homes, projects support the 
priority of “Diverse, healthy and cohesive communities - not just homes.” 

1.4 Vibrant Local Economy. Through Vision outcome 3 – Culture, projects support 
the priority “More young people choose to live and work in the district”. 

1.5 Living Well.  Through the Vision outcomes 1- Lifetimes and 5 - Movement 
projects support the priorities of; “Attractive public spaces where people feel 
safe and secure”, “A wide range of physical and cultural activities for all ages 
and abilities”, “Close work with local charities and voluntary organisations 
helping those most in need”, and “Increased opportunities for active travel”. 

1.6 Your Services, Your Voice.  By delivering against the Vision principle of 
“people power” and the critical values of “leadership though listening” and 
“openness, flexibility and responsiveness” activities support the priority of “An 
open, transparent, inclusive and enabling council”. 

 

Page 12



2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

2.1 There is no direct budget allocated to the delivery of the Town Vision.  Its 
outcomes need to be achieved from within existing financial resources, which 
include the Town Account, including small and project grants, and 
Neighbourhood (Town) Community Infrastructure Levy.  Whilst this funding is 
not directly attributed to the Town Vision, the new facilities, equipment, spaces 
and services they support and benefits they create for the community and 
residents can be seen to correlate with the outcomes of the Vision’s key 
themes.  To demonstrate this the various types of funding allocation have 
been notionally mapped to the most relevant Vision theme.  

2.2 Town Account 

2.3 The Town Forum considered its draft budget for 2024/25 and the indicative 
projections for the strategy period at its January 2024 meeting.  This included: 

Item 2024/2025  
Forecast 

Town Vision Theme 

Allotments  (£4,000) 

Lifetimes 

Public Conveniences (Contribution)  £50,000 

Neighbourhood Service Officers (Contribution)  £45,000 

Revenue play area reactive maintenance  £5,841 

Tennis Court Improvements  £9,000 

Cemeteries  £87,039 

Ecology / Lifetimes Recreation Grounds & Open Spaces  £810,766 

Recreation Grounds & Open Spaces - 
Additional Budget  

£50,000 

Bus Shelter Cleaning / Maintenance / New  £20,000 

Movement 
Footway Lighting  £33,873 

Maintenance Work to Council Owned Bridges  £5,500 

Night Bus Contribution  £12,751 

Christmas Lights  £7,500 Culture 

Grants and Vision Delivery  £70,000 

ALL Support Costs for Grant Scheme  £2,000 

Town Forum Support  £5,000 
   

2.4 Town Small and Project Grants 

2.5 Each year budget is allocated to grant fund projects in the Town Wards. A 
review of this grant programme was reported to the Town Forum in 
September 2023 and the fund for 2023/24 was agreed as £30,000, notionally 
split £23,000 for project grants and £7,000 for small grants. 

Page 13



2.6 To date in 2023 the following grants have been awarded totalling £5,872 and 
further awards are expected before the end of the financial year.   

Project  Allocation  Town Vision Theme 

Clausentum Fen Conservation Group £385 Lifetimes / Ecology 

GoLD £1,000 Lifetimes 

Platform 4 £900 Lifetimes / Culture 

Friends of St Giles Hill Park £1,000 Lifetimes / Ecology 

Street Reach £300 Lifetimes 

Winchester & District Allotment Holders £985 Lifetimes 

Highcliffe Community Forum for Action £652 Ecology 

Winchester Poetry Festival £650 Culture 

 

2.7 It would be possible to review the small and project grant criteria so that the 
grant fund is more explicitly aligned to achieving the Vision outcomes.  This 
could be introduced for the 2024/2025 round of awards.  

2.8 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)  

2.9 The principles for spending the Winchester Town Forum’s share of CIL were 
approved in November 2016 (see WTF245), in order to provide for the 
community-led improvement of the environment and infrastructure in the 
Winchester Town.   The types of infrastructure projects include: 

(i) Education; healthcare and community and cultural facilities. 
(ii) Energy and carbon reduction schemes. 
(iii) Open space provision and green and blue infrastructure. 
(iv) Built facilities, indoor/outdoor sport, recreational and informal 

leisure and social facilities. 
(v) Active travel and movement infrastructure. 

2.10 Whilst the assessment of funding applications does not include Town Vision 
as a criterion, the nature of project that have been funded do indirectly 
contribute the key themes.  This is especially true of Lifetimes, Ecology and 
Movement.  

 

 

 

      

Page 14



2.11 Based on historic receipts, around £150k to £200k of town CIL is expected 
per annum and as of April 2023 the Neighbourhood CIL (Town) receivable 
balance stood at £1.142m.   

Project  Allocation  Town Vision Theme 

Abbots Barton and Hyde Scouts Facility £50,000 

Lifetimes 
North Walls Pavilion £295,000 

North Walls Lighting and Fencing £34,000 

KGV Pavilion £450,000 

KGV Park Plan £50,000 Lifetimes / Ecology 

Milland Road £10,000 Movement 
 

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  

3.1 None from this up-date report. 

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS  

4.1 None for this up-date report.   

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS  

5.1 In order to better enable communities to consider, plan and deliver community 
assets in their own neighbourhoods, a guide has been created to help 
residents and organisations: “Guide for Community Organisations - An 
information guide to help create new, improved or changed assets for your 
local community”.   

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 The Town Vision Informal Group met at the end of October 2023 to review the 
approach to the annual review and discuss the scope and content for the up-
date report.  It considered: 

a) What has changed / been achieved as a consequence of adopting the 
Vision?  

b) Ways in which the Town Forum can support activity and use the 
guiding principles of the Vision to build local agency?  

c) What approaches can be adopted to achieve the Vision outcomes in 
the future? 

d) How can change be captured and documented?    

Page 15



6.2 The discussion concluded that the Vision recommendations should be 
mapped to work that has already adopted, or has the potential to further 
embed, its principles and values.    

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 The Vision for Winchester recommends a number of far-reaching actions and 
outcomes that will positively impact on the environment in terms of 
sustainability, carbon emissions, air quality and ecology.  Throughout the year 
a range of projects and actions have contributed to improving ecology, advice 
on reducing energy consumption and increasing opportunities for active 
travel. 

8 PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY  

8.1 None arising from the content of this up-date report, although officers will 
have regard to the considerations as set out in the Equalities Act 2010 and 
whether an Equality Impact Assessment will be required to be undertaken on 
any specific recommendations, projects and or future decisions made. 

 
9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

9.1 None.    

10 RISK MANAGEMENT  

10.1 The implementation of the Winchester Vision is in line with the council’s 
current risk appetite which is moderate.  This means that the council remains 
open to innovative ways of working. 

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 
Financial Exposure 
Options to give greater 
control and empowerment 
to community organisations 
to bid for and manage 
funding can potentially 
increase the risk of both 
projects not being delivered 
as planned and increased 
costs.  

 
Grant and funding 
mechanisms and 
agreements will require the 
inclusion of control 
measures to ensure 
accountability and delivery. 
 
 

 
Supporting community 
organisations to manage 
and control project funding 
will lead to greater 
empowerment, more 
resilience and self-
sufficiency. 

Exposure to challenge 
Low risk as the Vision was 
developed through 
extensive engagement and 
public briefings and has 
been adopted by 
Winchester Town Forum.  

 
Embed the values and 
principle of the Vision in the 
work of the Town Forum.   

 

Innovation   

Page 16



Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 
The Vision recommends a 
new approach to the way 
we work with our local 
communities.   
 
Local organisations and 
community group may need 
to adopt new approaches 
and ways of working.  

A guide/toolkit to how 
residents and community 
organisations can take 
forward local projects has 
been created. (See property 
risk) 

New ways of working with 
our communities should 
lead to more effective 
outcomes. 

Reputation 
The council fails to take 
forward the findings and 
recommendations from the 
Vision, and those who 
participated and gave over 
their time and energy to 
create it, lose trust in the 
process and the council. 

 
Ensure that measures are 
put in-place to support 
delivery of the Vision by 
officers, members and 
communities building upon 
work already undertaken or 
planned.   
 
Demonstrate working 
towards Vision principles by 
explicitly making the links in 
all Town Forum reports. 

 
There is potential to 
enhance the council’s 
reputation by demonstrating 
that is taking forward the 
recommendations made by 
the participants in the 
working groups and is 
empowering communities to 
deliver the changes they 
want to make. 

Achievement of outcome 
The Vision is broad in the 
issues it covers and the 
range of recommended 
actions. This creates a risk 
that there is no ownership of 
the outcomes and so no 
responsibility for ensuring 
outcomes are achieved.  

 
Greater involvement of 
residents and groups at the 
start of project design and 
delivery will create a sense 
of ownership in the 
outcomes. 
      

 
The potential to better 
document and showcase 
the community engagement 
work that is undertaken 
across the council’s services 
on the areas covered in the 
Vision. 

Property 
Community organisation 
empowered to own or 
manage assets fail, or 
liabilities and obligations are 
not met.      

 
Guide to developing, 
changing or improving 
community asset helps local 
organisations to prepare, 
plan and fund their 
schemes.  

 
New approaches and 
ownerships/ management 
models could result in 
reduced costs to the council 
and greater use / care for 
the local assets. 

Community Support 
Stakeholders do not wish, or 
are not able, to participate in 
the engagement work or 
come forward as local 
champions and advocate for 
project work.  

 
Greater involvement of 
residents and groups at the 
start of project design and 
delivery should create a 
sense of ownership in the 
outcomes. 

 
Need to create new ways for 
people to come forward as 
local champions and 
advocates for project work 
in their local areas. 
 

Timescales 
This is a ten-year vision; 
and change may take to 

 
By working with residents 
and local groups it will be 
possible to identify with 

 
A co-designed programme 
of actions and delivery, 
where resources are pooled, 

Page 17



Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 
develop demonstrate which 
leads to disengagement.   

them what the important 
changes are for their areas, 
how these can be delivered 
and when. 

shared and used effectively 
will lead (potentially) to 
accelerated timescales.   

Project capacity 
Teams delivering projects 
do not have the capacity to 
adapt their delivery 
approach to incorporate 
community engagement / 
empowerment on the 
activities recommended in 
the Vision.   

 
By identifying the up-coming 
opportunities, priority can be 
given to those that have the 
greatest potential for 
increased community 
empowerment.  Successful 
delivery will build skills and 
capacity in the longer term.       

 
New ways of working with a 
flexible and adaptable 
approach may result in 
increased capacity within 
communities to be more 
self-reliant and resilient, 
requiring less direct support 
by the council in the longer 
term.    

 
 
11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

11.1 Since Winchester Town Forum approved the adoption of the three handbooks 
as the Vision for Winchester in January 2021 much has happened and socio-
economic conditions and sentiments have changed. Over the past years there 
have been the cost of Living crisis, influx of refugees through the Homes for 
Ukraine programme, and public sector funding challenges – both City Council 
and Hampshire County Council.   

11.2 These challenges re-enforce the importance of resilient and cohesive 
communities and it is worth being reminded of the Vision’s purpose and 
recommendations. 

11.3  Vision Development & Outputs Summary 

11.4 The Winchester Town Vision was created out of a series of community 
engagements that collated views and ideas from local residents, business, 
institutions as to what Winchester city is like now and should be in the future.  
This work was facilitated by Boyle + Summers, Feria Urbanism, Støriie and 
Momo:zo.  The purpose was to develop a vision document that would be used 
to shape the city for the next ten years.  Five themed working groups 
considered this:   

 

THEME 

 
LIFETIMES 

 
HOME ECOLOGY CULTURE MOVEMENT 

What it means to 
live in the city 

The relationship 
between 

landscape, 
history, historic 
buildings people 

and stories 

Housing, the 
town centre, and 
neighbourhoods 

What culture 
means to 

Winchester 

Actively getting 
around the city  

Page 18



Key 
outcome 

topics 

• Use of public 
spaces & 
creative 
activities 

• Walking 
• Supporting 

community 
leaders 

• Access to 
information on 
local resources  

• New homes 
• Small local 

projects 
• Trust and 

creative 
approaches 

• Signage & 
wayfinding 

• Stories of 
environment, 
sustainable 
business & 
heritage 

• Co-created 
projects  

 

• Strategic 
support for 
culture & 
community  

• Use of spaces & 
places 

• Small local 
projects 

• Street design 
for a range of 
users 

• Reduce impact 
of cars 

• New ideas & 
responding to 
changing 
attitudes 

 
11.5 Over the course of 2020 three outputs captured and recorded all the input 

from the work of the five theme groups:    

 

 

11.6 The issues the Vision recognised as needing to be address in the city 
included:  

a) Unbalanced demographic: leaning heavily toward an unsustainably 
elderly population; a perceived difficulty in housing the young, and an 
actual difficulty retaining people between the ages of 18 to 30 due to a 
range of factors including lack of career development opportunity and 
the high costs of living. 

b) Inequality: the blockages this presents to groups and individuals and 
that it can be harder for those in need to access local resources 
because they are largely unseen in a relatively wealthy city.  

c) Broader global issues facing all cities: the climate crisis; adapting to the 
2020 global pandemic; the impact of rapidly developing technologies. 

Fe
b 

-J
ul

y 
20

20

Handbook Part 1
Records the results of 
the first phase 
engagement and 
consultation

Se
pt

 -
O

ct
 

20
20

Handbook Part 2
Captures the results of an 
intensive working group phase

N
ov

 -
De

c
20

20

Handbook Part 3
Uses research findings from earlier 
in the process to make a set of 
recommendations and actions for 
the decade ahead.  

The Winchester Vision 2030 

Page 19



11.7 The Vision recommended a fundamental shift away from city centre projects 
towards building resilient local communities that:  

11.8 What has changed / been achieved as a consequence of adopting the 
Vision.  

11.9 The refreshed Council Plan (2023) introduced ‘Listening Better’ as an area of 
enhanced focus with the aim of “Being more effective at hearing the voice of 
residents and enabling them to influence our decision-making”.  Some of the 
activities to support this and to demonstrate the greater voice and involvement 
of residents in decision making include: 

a) The Neighbourhood Services and Community Safety Team undertook 
several consultations with residents including: 

(i) Community Together and Growing for Wellbeing consultation to 
learn about how safe residents feel in the St Barnabas Ward 
and if they had experienced any form of anti-social behaviour. 
20 residents attended the event and, of those, 50% had 
experienced anti-social behaviour. The consultation also asked 
if residents in the area were aware of where they could get help 
with a range of services 83% of attendees said yes.  

(ii) Walkabouts in Winnall and Highcliffe to listen to concerns from 
residents around community issues in order that the council can 
work together with partners to resolve these issues.  

b) The Water Lane water safety awareness day took place in July 2023 
inviting residents to meet with the Neighbourhood Engagement team, 
the Winchester Fire & Rescue Service and the Water Safety Officer 
who provided water safety awareness tips and Anti-Social Behaviour 
reporting advice. 

c) A consultation with local residents on a proposal to carry out 
improvements to the Westfield Road open space was also undertaken 
at the end of June with an informal street meet at the site held to hear 
the views of residents and what they would like to see at the site.    

Focuses on people and community and 
supporting community 
Shifts its focus toward the local 
Thrives because it is resilient

Collectively tackle the challenges that 
face us  
Have small improvements at the local 
level 
Have freedom to self-organise and 
greater access to local resources

Page 20



d) River Park play area reopened following refurbishment and included 
new equipment which was selected following successful public 
consultation and engagement with residents during the planning of the 
refurbishment. 

11.10 The work on the emerging Local Plan embraced from early on the practice of 
community engagement and the twenty-minute communities concept.  The 
Regulation 18 Local Plan makes many references to the Town Vision:  

 
 

11.11 Ways in which the Town Forum can support activity and use the guiding 
principles of the Vision to build local agency.  

11.12 The Town Forum has a number of active informal groups through which local 
agency and community engagement can be fostered.  These groups can 
demonstrate and capture application of Vision’s recommendations through 
their work, the issues they address and the things they are seeking to change 
or improve.  This activity can also be linked to the grant funding priorities and 
access to CIL funding.   

 

 

Page 21



11.13 Informal groups mapped to Vision themes. 

 

Vison Theme 
Lifetimes Ecology Homes Culture Movement 

Informal groups 

City Centre 
  

  
 

Parks and Recreation 
  

 
 

 

Heritage 
 

  
 

 

Town Account   
 

  

Outdoor Swimming 
  

   

Town Vision & Grants 
     

 

11.14 This approach could be strengthened by a more explicit link from the Vision to 
the informal groups through renaming them.  This could be reviewed at the 
time when informal groups are established. 

11.15 Approaches that can be adopted to achieve the Vision outcomes in the 
future. 

11.16 In recognition that the Vision and its approach needs to “flex with the times” it 
is more important to seek and identify the opportunities for how the Vision can 
be embedded in future activity. 

11.17 The following table is a summary of all the potential and suggested target 
projects captured in the Vision Handbook 2’s, grouped under each of the 
three Approaches of Spatial; People Power and Auditing & Sharing 
Resources and aligned with the key strategy or policy and a potential future 
delivery route or opportunity.        

 

 
Spatial: Streets and spaces of Winchester 

•  The city made by walking 

Informal Group  
• City Centre  
• Parks and Recreation 

 Demand for a different way of using the streets and 
spaces of the city. 

 Better ways of using the city’s valuable space than 
travelling by private car. 

 A network across the city that enables active travel, 
away from traffic. 

Key Strategy / Policy 
 Local Plan  
 Housing Strategy  
 Winchester Movement Strategy 
 Local Walking & Cycling Infrastructure Plan 

(LCWIP) 
 

Page 22



 Emphasis on rebalancing and sharing out limited 
road space in an equitable way. 

Workbook Target Projects Theme Delivery route / opportunity 

Make plans.  
New housing is critical to keeping Winchester as a living city.  

Home Local Plan 
Housing Strategy  

Arrival.  
How ever you arrive in Winchester you don’t feel placed.  
Some basic physical signage and other signals that could help 
this missing sense of theatre. 

Ecology 
 

Movement Strategy  
Tourism – new notice boards at key 
arrival points 
Station Approach 

Wayfinding. 
Development of wayfinding could help more residents and 
visitors alike feel placed in Winchester wherever they are.  A 
mixed approach, between physical and digital and other 
experiential. 

Pocket Public Spaces. 
Public spaces for the community to use - could range from 
small community gardens through to more formal squares 
and areas adjacent to shops. 

Lifetimes 
 

Community Infrastructure Levy 
Guide for Community Organisations - 
An information guide to help create 
new, improved or changed assets for 
your local community 

A City Made by Walking.  
A series of walking routes that enable easy walking, away 
from busy roads, in local areas, that connect to form a 
network of routes across the city. 
Interspersed with ‘pause’ or ‘hub’ spaces that provide 
communities with access to good quality public realm. 

Movement Strategy 
Local Walking & Cycling 
Infrastructure Plan  
Station Approach  
Central Winchester Regeneration  
Public realm schemes 
Community Infrastructure Levy   
Playing Out  
Road closures for events / street 
parties 
 

Make ‘complete streets’ for the city. 
New street designs that successfully retain car movements 
but rebalance them with a greater awareness of the 
architectural heritage of an area and the needs of other road 
users, such as pedestrians and cyclists. 
More recent designs are much better at accommodating the 
wide range of needs of all groups.  

Movement  
 

Effective branding and promotion of experimental schemes. 
Experiment could begin the process of allowing the people of 
Winchester to see their city in a new light and help build that 
tipping point of consensus that change is required. 

A city that works for all age groups. 
Cycling, walking and the need to reduce the impact of the car 
upon a historic city core. 
Clear that the way a city chooses to move around has far 
reaching impacts on both the ecology of the city but also on 
different age groups. 
People Power: Sharing responsibility at a local level 

• Establishing mechanisms that enable 
communities.  

Informal Groups  
• City Centre 
• Parks and Recreation  
• Heritage  

Page 23



 Greater ability for people to shape and influence 
the places where they live, work and play. 

 (Re)build trust with residents and create better 
links that devolve decision making to a local level. 

 Encourage people out onto the street - busy streets 
look welcoming and attract others to join. 

 Create a culture of ownership in which people feel 
the streets and public areas belong to them. 

 Resilient communities support each other, create 
happiness and well-being, and make people who 
live there feel good. 

 Allowance made for capacity building within the 
community. 

 Community groups may run less formally in future, 
with a new set of mechanisms in order to be 
effective and streamlined. 

Key Strategy / Policy 
 Green Economic Development Strategy  
 Winchester District Cultural Strategy 
 City of Sanctury 
 Community & Wellbeing Strategy (to be 

developed)    
   

Workbook Target Projects Theme Delivery route / opportunity 

Encourage communities (100SW).  
100 Small WINS that could be made 

Home  
 

Town Forum project and small grants 
Festivals and Events Programming 
Policy  
 

Everything begins at home.  
Building trust amongst Winchester’s citizens means starting 
with modest projects in their communities. 

Tenant Engagement Strategy 
 

Open up.  
Trust will only grow once a truly open and inclusive approach 
is taken across the board. 

City of Sanctuary 
  

Get creative.  
Entirely new approaches to getting things done have to be 
trialled, for instance, taking up offers of help from within the 
community and adding a small resource too. 

UK Share Prosperity Fund (SPF) 
community project in Stanmore 
 

The Big Picture.  
Developing top line strategic approaches to support the 
community, the culture and the people of the city.  

Culture 
 

 
 
Festivals Network  
Festivals and events policy & 
programme 
Winchester Street Market  
Community event / street parties – 
guidance & information 
 
 

Community Build – People and Place.  
Utilising existing spaces in a smarter way is key to the success 
of a thriving culture across the city. 
Temporary pop-up sites are also vital to a sustainable 
creative community.  
Curated pop-up markets and shops will encourage a platform 
for independent business owners to test new products. 
Developing the people is just as important - skills and training 
for creatives and enterprises. 

Projects.  
Smaller projects, medium and long term cultural initiatives 
that anyone wishes to pursue. 

Page 24



Co-creation. 
Ongoing listening projects of various kinds – e.g. pop-up 
culture invitations in ecology safe spaces and invitations to 
the equivalent of citizens assemblies. 

Ecology 
 

Social Entrepreneurs. 
Identifying individuals in the community and supporting them 
to make small but significant changes to their local area. 
Activity could range from putting on events and street 
festivals to cultivating community gardens and pocket parks. 
Small local level funding. 

Lifetimes 
 

365 Days A Year Festival Culture.  
Taking the culture of the Hat fair and allowing it to run 
through all areas of the city and throughout the year.  
A focus of collecting in public space to participate in 
community activity. 

Auditing & Sharing Resources: The map is the territory   
• Creating and Sharing Data is Empowerment 

Informal Groups  
• Parks and Recreation   
• Heritage  

 There is an abundance of resources that are 
underused that could be better distributed and 
reorganised to make greater use of them. 

 There needs to be a generosity in developments to 
deliver places for building community. 

 Mapping can become an empowering cultural 
project, connecting people to place, to things, to 
other people and to each other. 

Key Strategy / Policy 
 Carbon Neutrality Action Plan  
 Local Nature Recovery Strategy (to be 

developed)    
 Bio-diversity Action Plan  
 Cultural Strategy  
 Community & Wellbeing Strategy (to be 

developed) 
Workbook Target Projects Theme Delivery route / opportunity 

Research and Data Gathering.  
Up to date information about the socio-economic 
contribution of arts/culture/creative industries. 
A database of venues collated for the public to access would 
benefit the creative practitioners, local businesses and 
creative output overall.  
A cultural spaces database needs to be maintained and 
shared with stakeholders across the city. 

Culture 
 

Cultural Strategy 
Community & Wellbeing Strategy (to 
be developed) 

Representation. 
What historic trails, sustainable businesses and unsung 
stories of environment are out there already? And what new 
stories of us will we find truly make up Winchester today? 
Auditing, researching, listening and putting them together 
will build recognition, trust and knowledge. 

Ecology 
 

Bio-diversity Action Plan  
Visit Winchester marketing & 
campaigns 
Green Economic Development 
Strategy 
Carbon Neutrality Action Plan  
  

Catching emerging ideas how we make change happen in 
Winchester. 
Include the space to catch emerging ideas. It cannot be fixed 
or rigid. It needs to flex with changing times, changing 
attitudes, and changing technologies. 

Movement  
 

Movement strategy  
Local Walking & Cycling 
Infrastructure Plan 

Page 25



Mapping Resources. 
Winchester is already rich in activity/ resources and 
opportunity, but these are not always widely known or 
available. Creating a map / app of resources would allow for 
greater visibility and accessibility. 

Lifetimes 
 

Cultural Strategy  

 

11.18 Capturing and documenting change.   

11.19 It is proposed that, in order to capture the outcomes of the Vision, the Town 
Forum Committee reporting template be revised to include a section on the 
Town Vison.  This would report authors and project managers to consider and 
demonstrate how policy, project or activity under consideration supports and 
contributes to the achievement of the Town Vision.  

11.20 To reflect the key focus of the Vision on the ‘how’ and not the ‘what’, it is 
proposed that report authors and project managers demonstrate how their 
policy, project or activity address the following: 

A. Spatial: streets and spaces of Winchester. The city made by walking. 

B. People Power: sharing responsibility at a local level. Establishing 
mechanisms that enable communities. 

C. Auditing & Sharing Resources: the map is the territory. Creating and 
sharing data is empowerment. 

12 Conclusion  

12.1 To demonstrate how the work of the Town Forum delivers the Vision 
outcomes is proposed that three changes could be introduced.  These are a 
revision to the reporting template to record policy and project contributions, 
renaming (some of) the Informal Groups and amending the small and project 
grant criteria to include Vision outcome.  This will remove the need to 
complete an annual report as progress will be observed and recorded 
throughout the year.  
 

13 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

13.1 Do nothing:  This option is rejected for the following reasons. The Vision for 
Winchester has been adopted by the Town Forum and its development 
represented a significant investment of resources for the council. In order to 
capitalise on the investment made by the council, and the efforts of the 
stakeholders who participated in the development of the Vision, it should lead 
to change in how we work with our residents and help to deliver real change 
on the ground in local communities. 

Page 26



13.2 Invest resources into a specific Town Vision delivery programme:  This option 
is rejected for the following reasons.  The Vision principles are to empower 
community, build local agency and change the way we work with our 
residents so that they are involved in local decisions.  Coupled with the 
financial constraints of funding such an approach with the desire to have the 
Vision principles applied to all work and not just individual projects, makes this 
option unviable. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

WTF328 – Winchester Town Forum 25 January 2024: Winchester Town Account 
Budget for 2024/25 (To be recommended to Cabinet)  

WTF328 - Winchester Town Account Budget for 2024-25.pdf 

WTF316 – Winchester Town Forum, 13 March 2023:  Winchester Town Vision – 
progress update 

WTF316 - Winchester Town Vision - Progress Update.pdf 

WTF307 – Winchester Town Forum, 17 March 2022:  Winchester Town Vision – 
progress update 

WTF307 - Winchester Town Vision progress update.pdf 

WTF300 – Winchester Town Forum - 16 SEPTEMBER 2021: Vision for Winchester 
2030 – Update  

WTF300 Vision Update Report.pdf (winchester.gov.uk) 

WTF293 – Winchester Town Forum 28 January 2021 VISION FOR WINCHESTER 

WTF293 Report - Vision for Winchester.pdf 

WTF291 – Winchester Town Forum 24 November 2020 – Vision for Winchester 
update 

WTF291 Vision for Winchester.edited.pdf 

Other Background Documents:- 

Winchester Vision 2020-2030 

https://www.onegreatwin.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Winchester-Vision-2030-
Part-3.pdf 

APPENDICES: 

None 

Page 27

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s27787/WTF328%20-%20Winchester%20Town%20Account%20Budget%20for%202024-25.pdf
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s24710/WTF316%20-%20Winchester%20Town%20Vision%20-%20Progress%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s18957/WTF307%20-%20Winchester%20Town%20Vision%20progress%20update.pdf
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s16841/WTF300%20Vision%20Update%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s13889/WTF293%20Report%20-%20Vision%20for%20Winchester.pdf
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/s13286/WTF291%20Vision%20for%20Winchester.edited.pdf
https://www.onegreatwin.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Winchester-Vision-2030-Part-3.pdf
https://www.onegreatwin.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Winchester-Vision-2030-Part-3.pdf


 
 

 

 
 

Page 28



WINCHESTER TOWN FORUM – SCHEDULED ITEMS OF BUSINESS ETC 
 
 

 
11 MARCH 2024 
 

  
BUSINESS 

 

 
LEAD OFFICER 

 
COMMITTEE DATE 

 
STATUS/COMMENT 

 Update from Stagecoach (Verbal 
Update) 
 

Andy Hickman/Simon 
Hendey 
 

11 March 2024  Mark Jackson, 
Operations Manager, 
Stagecoach 
Winchester in 
attendance 
 

 Winchester Town Vision Update  
 

Susan Robbins 
 

11 March 2024  WTF329 

 

Items to be allocated for 2024/25: 
 

Update from the Friends of St Giles Hill Park regarding preliminary works – June 2024 (added at the request of the Chair, Cllr 
Reach) 
 

North Winchester Design Code (to be timetabled by officers when updates are available) – Date tbc 

Budget Review: Open Spaces and Grounds Maintenance –IDV Contract – Proposals – Andy Hickman/Campbell Williams 
(moved from 2023/24 to 2024/25) 
 

Budget Review: Cemeteries – Proposals - Karen Vincent (moved from 2023/24 to 2024/25) 
 

 
 

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 25 January 2024
	Minutes

	7 Winchester Town Vision Update (WTF329)
	WINCHESTER TOWN FORUM
	REPORT TITLE: WINCHESTER VISION UPDATE
	11 MARCH 2024
	REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: Cllr Kathleen Becker, Cabinet Member for Community & Engagement    
	Contact Officer:  Susan Robbins    Tel No: 01962 8484 461 Email srobbins@winchester.goiv.uk 


	10 Work Programme

